
 Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 

  LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 5:30 p.m. - Room 514 

141 S. Main St., Decatur, IL  62523 

 February 7, 2017 

 
  

MEMBERS PRESENT            COUNTY PERSONNEL PRESENT 
Bryan Smith      Josh Tanner, S of A 

Helena Buckner (arrived @ 5:31 p.m.) 

Pat Dawson 

Greg Mattingley 

Bill Oliver 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT     Jeannie Durham, County Board Office  

Verzell Taylor 

 

Chairman Smith called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Motion to approve minutes from the 2/15/12 meeting was made by Mr. Mattingley, seconded by 

Ms. Dawson and motion carried 4-0. 

 

 There were no citizens present.  

 

There was no old business to address.  

 

Chair Smith commented that since he is new as chair of the committee, he would like to share some 

thoughts on the legislative process and how it goes in Springfield because he deals with it daily and 

so is pretty close to it.   

 

All of the information that the committee has been given (reports from both County Board 

associations), as soon as it is printed, is old. 

 

The Legislature is just coming back in.  The Senate was in today.  The House and Senate will be in 

tomorrow.  They are still introducing bills.  There is still some time left before the deadline for 

introduction of bills. The County Board associations, the UCCI and the IACBM, are pretty good in 

sending us information on bills they are following for us.  Some of the various officeholders have 

sent information that their various associations are watching.  Nothing is going to happen for a 

while yet.  Committees are still being assigned in Springfield.  Last week, where a lot of county 

legislation goes, the County and Townships Committee had four Democrat members named, but the 

Republicans have not named their members yet.  Since not all committees have been named yet, 

they are not even meeting yet.  Once that happens, bills will start to be assigned to committees as to 

where they will be heard.   



 Page 2 of 5 

 
 
 

 

Mr. Smith said his recommendation would be to wait for the deadline and all the bills are out there, 

then talk to our associations and find out which ones they think have some legs and might be going 

somewhere and we can meet and see where we, as a county, will want to take a stand. 

 

That is another point that some decision needs to be made on at this point.  Things in Springfield 

happen pretty quickly.  Sometimes they can schedule a bill to be heard and we need to know what 

kind of position we want to take.  Maybe it is a bill that will be detrimental to Macon County and 

our government, so we would obviously want to be opposed.  How do we want to approach that in 

terms of making our voice heard to our legislators that represent us in Springfield.  We can’t call a 

committee meeting together and take a vote.  Mr. Smith said his recommendation would be for him 

to communicate through the Board Office and Chairman Dunn in keeping the committee abreast of 

all the bills and if something urgent comes up, it would be appropriate and Mr. Smith said he felt 

strongly that the Chairman should voice our concern or support or opposition to whatever the 

particular bill is either through a phone call, letter, email or fax to the local legislators so they know 

where we stand on that bill.  He asked for the committee’s thoughts on following that procedure.  

Ms. Dawson said it is true that things change so rapidly and we won’t have time to convene a 

meeting and discuss, so she was not opposed to the recommendation.  Mr. Mattingley agreed.  Ms. 

Buckner said it is a good idea. Mr. Oliver agreed. Chair Smith went on to say that the county is 

represented by Scherer, Mitchell, Rose & Manar.  Both political parties are represented.  That is 

good, but we need to make sure the process is clear that if we say we are going to be opposed to X 

bill, we get the information to the Chairman and then he relays that to our legislators so that they 

know where we are at.  There are times when bills will be heard in committee.  It is very easy now 

to submit support or opposition to a particular bill via online slipping.  It can be done electronically 

online.  Each individual committee member could do that.  We want to make sure that if there is a 

bill that really looks like it may be something we want to kill in committee, that is the way to do it.  

Our associations, the County Board Association of which Chair Smith said he has a good 

relationship with Kelly Murray as well as Mike McCreery from UCCI.  They would listen to what 

we have to say and carry that forward and be in opposition or support with whatever at a particular 

committee level.  Mr. Oliver asked how much weight they carry; how close do they get to Madigan. 

Chair Smith could not answer and explained that it depends on the subject matter. Legislators will 

be given so many bills that they could see get passed through committee and it then hopefully goes 

to the floor and is passed by the full chamber.  They have so much else going on right now and the 

State is in such a financial mess.   

 

Mr. Oliver about the bill on medical cannabis (SB10).  He referred to information on page 10 of the 

Legislative Summary information from IACBM. Chair Smith explained that the bills in the reports 

are bills that have passed and are now Public Acts.  Mr. Oliver said there are still concerns for 

people who want to use it and he had heard that now they want to give it to dogs.  Ms. Dawson 

asked if there was anyone in the county that wanted to open up a dispensary.  That would be of 

interest.   

 



 Page 3 of 5 

 
 
 

Chair Smith asked if there was any legislature, members of the committee had read about that 

affects the Macon County government that they may have talked to an officeholder about.  

 

Ms. Dawson mentioned the property tax bills. Chair Smith said that he thought that would be one 

bill they would see come through. He said that everyone present is sensitive to taxpayers about the 

high property taxes, but is a 2 year property tax freeze the route to go?  That is going to affect us.  

We could not levy more for 2 years.  Whatever we levied this past year would be frozen for 2 years.  

That is the rumor that is swirling in Springfield that is part of this grand bargain they are coming up 

with.  Chair Smith said he really felt that that is one thing that we will see.  He went on to say that 

another thing that he thought we would see is making the tax cap statewide.  As of right now, there 

is 30(+/-) counties that have a tax cap.  We don’t.  Ms. Dawson asked for an explanation.  Chair 

Smith said that right now, in Sangamon County for example, if you are a taxing district, you can 

only increase your tax levy at the rate of the CPI or 5% whichever is less.  The CPI is much less. It 

was < 1% a year or so ago.  That would dramatically curtail what a government could do.  Ms. 

Dawson commented that it is almost like a freeze.  Chair Smith agreed and repeated that the 

Property Tax Freeze is one thing he thought we would see pushed really hard.  The Governor wants 

that and there are legislators that want to see that too.  It will be a part of any grand bargain. If it is 2 

years and that is it, could we live with it?  We’d have to, but it would be tough.  There are a lot of 

bills floating out there already this year where they are picking on particular governments such as 

townships or libraries.  All of that will probably be pushed aside and it will be just one blanket 

freeze for everybody.  

 

Mr. Oliver referred to page 5 and said that we have had some problems with the local assessors and 

the County ended up having to bill them out.  Chair Smith referred the question to Mr. Tanner who 

had brought some bills for the committee to look at.  Mr. Tanner said the bill Mr. Oliver was 

referring to passed last June and was something that was sponsored by the Supervisors Association.  

Several years ago, the date was changed and pushed back which the Township Assessors could turn 

their books in.  They pushed it to June 15. They did not push back the date that the S of A has to 

turn the books in to the Board of Review and so sometimes those dates overlapped.  It was June 15 

for the Townships to turn the books in to the S of A and then the S of A had until the 2
nd

 Monday in 

June which was sometimes before June 15.  This was really just a cleanup bill to fix the timeline 

between when the S of A has the books and when he has to turn them in to the BOR.  It really didn’t 

do anything other than make it legal to do what everybody had to do anyway.   

 

Mr. Oliver asked if there were any penalties for tax assessors that do not complete their work on 

time.  Mr. Tanner said yes, the Statutes provide that if the Supervisor of Assessments completes the 

work for the Township Assessors, they have the authority to bill them.  In Macon County, we have 

an agreement with each of the townships that stipulates what the bill will be as far as the amount 

that it will be.  All of the Townships in Macon County have signed that contract with the Chairman 

of the County Board.  To date, for every bill that has been invoiced, payment has been received. In 

Macon County, we have not had any troubles with receiving payment from the townships.  The 

problem we do have is that there are just a lot of vacancies with the Township Assessors.   

 



 Page 4 of 5 

 
 
 

Mr. Oliver asked what the qualifications are to be an assessor.  Mr. Tanner explained that you have 

to pass a state test, which means you have to take 5 classes and then pass 5 tests.  It is kind of cost 

prohibited.  A lot of Townships that are small just don’t pay that much.  Five classes cost about 

$2,000 to get the designation and then it has to be maintained.  If you are only being paid between 

$3,000 to $5,000 a year, there are not a lot of people getting in line for that job.  Chair Smith added 

that the jurisdiction can pay for it too.  Mr. Tanner said that in the past couple of years, there has not 

been a real problem in townships failing to do their work. Some townships have been billed for 

things that they missed, but they didn’t just refuse to do any work.   They just missed things.  Ms. 

Dawson asked if the County does Decatur Township’s.  Mr. Tanner said not in the past couple of 

years, but several years ago.  We have not had to bill the current Decatur Township Assessor.   

 

Mr. Oliver asked if all the assessments are up to par and all the properties have been evaluated.  Mr. 

Tanner said they are receiving a lot less complaints than in the past.  In 2011, when they did work 

for the Decatur Township, there were 1,100 appeals. This year there were around 500.  The volume 

of complaints are not being received, but it is unknown if that means that everything is accurately 

assessed or that people are just not complaining. It would indicate that there is more satisfactions 

with the assessments if there are less complaints.   

 

Mr. Oliver asked if there is a difference in the assessed property values for homeowners versus 

landlords.  Mr. Tanner explained that they are done at 33 1/3 of the market value, so the assessed 

value should be 1/3 of the market value regardless of its use.  There are preferential assessments for 

low income properties, but they are specified by the Statute specifically.  The difference between 

landlords and homeowners is that a landlords do not qualify for exemptions that homeowners do. 

The exemptions reduce your tax burden.  If you are an owner of a property, but don’t live in it, you 

don’t qualify for exemptions.  The exemptions are what reduce your tax bill.  Theoretically, all 

homeowners who live in a home should pay less than people who are landlords.  People are only 

allowed one exemption.   

 

Chair Smith asked if there were objections to the process that he had laid out.  If not, the committee 

will proceed in that direction and meet again in a couple of weeks once all the other bills have been 

introduced to see what needs to be focused on and if there is anything of concern.   

 

Ms. Dawson asked about the two County association groups, IACBM & UCCI, and whether they 

are lobbyists for us and if we are a part of the organizations.  Chair Smith explained that Macon 

County is a member of both. Ms. Dawson clarified that they, in addition to the County Board 

Chairman, would lobby on our behalf.  Chair Smith confirmed and said that a couple of months ago, 

the UCCI group had asked him to speak at one of their meetings.  He expressed disappointment that 

there was nobody from Macon County present to hear.  He said both organizations are very good.   

 

Mr. Oliver asked if the Sheriff’s Department could be asked if it would be a good PR thing for them 

on the Motorcycle Blue Lights and Bicycle Rules of the Road and those sorts of things.  He said he 

thought that it would be good to ask them if they’d like to anything PR about that. Chair Smith said 



 Page 5 of 5 

 
 
 

he could contact the Sheriff and let him know, but it would be up to him.  Mr. Oliver said it would 

be PR for the public.  Chair Smith added that it is a safety thing. 

 

Mr. Oliver asked about attending sessions at the UCCI.  Chair Smith and Ms. Dawson commented 

that they always get invites.  The information about the meetings and educational seminars is sent 

out regularly from the board office. Ms. Dawson commented that Mr. Potts regularly attends the 

meetings.  Chair Smith commented that membership dues of $3,800 is paid yearly and then rebates 

are given for attendance.  The total $3,800 in dues has been fully refunded for the past several years 

plus a $400 reimbursement is given for each membership meeting that is attended.  Mr. Oliver 

asked what kind of cost is involved for the individual.  Ms. Dawson commented that it is just 

transportation over ( for which mileage reimbursement can be requested for) and they usually serve 

a really nice lunch.   

 

Motion to adjourn was made by Ms. Dawson, seconded by Mr. Oliver, motion carried 5-0 and the 

meeting was adjourned at 6 p.m.  

 

Minutes submitted by Jeannie Durham 

Macon County Board Office  

 

      

 

  

 

  

   

 

 


